
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Notice of Hearing 
Licensing Sub Committee 
(North) 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 18 AUGUST 
2011 
 

Time: 2.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3, 
CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, 
MIDDLESEX. UB8 1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Councillors on the Sub-Committee:  
 
Andrew Retter (Chairman) 
Lynne Allen (Labour Lead) 
Bruce Baker 
Judy Kelly 
Carol Melvin 
 
Important Information 
 
On receipt of this notice, you MUST notify 
the Committee Clerk (contact details 
below) by the following date:  
 
16 August 2011 
 
If you don’t notify you may lose your right 
to speak at the hearing.  When notifying 
you must confirm:  
 
1) Whether you intend to attend or to be 
represented by someone at the 
hearing; 

2) If you consider a hearing to be 
unnecessary and; 

3) Whether to request that another 
person attends (other than your 
representative) as a witness. 

  
Published: 26 July 2011 
 

 
 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
  Contact: Natasha Dogra 

Tel: 01895 277488 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: ndogra@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
 http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=300&MId=1166&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 
Chairman's Announcements 
1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Interest in Matters Coming before the Committee 

3 To confirm that all items on the agenda will be considered in Part 1 

4 Part 1 - Members, Public and Press 

 
Hearing Protocol for Premises Licensing Applications 
5 Application for review of premises licence - West Drayton Food & Wine, 19 Station 

Road, West Drayton UB7 7BT 

6 Application for review of premises licence - Best Food & Wine, 61 Station Road, 
West Drayton UB7 7LR 



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Act 2003 

Protocol for making representations and 
sub-committee hearings 

This protocol outlines the procedures that will be followed: 

- i - 

 When making representations 
 On receiving the Notice of the Hearing 
 Before, during and after the hearing 

Full details of the regulations surrounding sub-committee hearings are available for 
download on the Department of Culture, Media and Sport’s website by clicking here.

It is important that you carefully read these 
procedures before you make a representations to 
an application or wish to attend and be heard at a 

Licensing sub-committee hearing

Version agreed by the Licensing Committee – September 2007 
Published by the Cabinet Office, Democratic Services 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



- ii - 

11.. MMaakkiinngg rreepprreesseennttaattiioonnss11.. MMaakkiinngg rreepprreesseennttaattiioonnss

Am I eligible to make a representation? 
Contact Information: 
To make representations or related 
queries please contact:  

Hillingdon Licensing Service 
Tel: (01895) 277433
Email: licensing@hillingdon.gov.uk
Fax: (01895) 250011
Write to: 4W/01 Civic Centre, High 
Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex, UB8 1UW

Representations and objections to an application 
can only be made by parties or authorities entitled 
to do so under Government legislation – the 
Licensing Act 2003. The parties or authorities that 
can make representations are set out below: 

An interested party which would be anyone who is 
directly affected by activity at the licensed premises in 
question, such as:

A person living in the vicinity of the premises 
A body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises, e.g. a Residents 
Association.
A person involved in a business in the vicinity
A body representing persons involved in such business e.g. Trade Association. 

A responsible authority, which are namely: 

 Metropolitan Police Service 
 The London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority 
 Hillingdon Council’s Planning & Transportation and Environment & Consumer Protection 

Services
 Health and Safety bodies 
 Bodies relating to the protection of children from harm, e.g. Area Child Protection 

Committee

What happens if nobody makes any representations? 

It is important to note that under the terms of the Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Service must 
grant all new premises licence applications and variation applications if no relevant 
representations are received either from interested parties or responsible authorities. 

When do I make a representation? 

Any interested party or responsible authority may make written representations about an 
application. Generally these must be made at any time up to and including 28 consecutive days 
after the day on which the application was received.  

You should make your representations within the time limit specified in the notice put up at 
the premises or contained in the newspaper advertisement relating to the particular application. 
Representations received after the time limit cannot be accepted. Time limits are given in 
the attached Appendix (part 1) 

Page 2



- iii - 

What information should I provide in the representation? 

When making your representation you must give details for the reasons for objection. 
Representations will only be relevant if they relate to the four licensing objectives:  

(1) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
(2) Public Safety;  
(3) The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and  
(4) The Protection of Children from Harm. 

For more information about the Licensing Objectives please read Hillingdon’s Licensing Policy 
carefully as this document outlines the issues the Licensing Service will consider in respect of 
applications that have received relevant representations. You can get a copy of the Licensing 
policy by clicking here or contacting the Licensing Service by telephoning (01895) 277433. 

Representations should fully explain the nature of the points made, reflect the Licensing 
Objectives outlined above provide in detail any evidence relied upon to back up those points. 
Concerns or fears about what might happen if the licence is granted cannot be taken into 
account unless they relate to the Licensing Objectives. 

What format should the representation take? 

All representations must be given in writing. However, the Hillingdon Licensing Service agrees 
to accept relevant representations, with accompanying evidence, by email to allow compliance 
with the time limits, but where this is done, the full name and postal address should given in the 
email and representations must be immediately confirmed in writing afterwards.

Can we send in a petition? 

Yes, petitions can be submitted in accordance with the same rules that apply for 
representations. Petitions should outline their purpose and potential signatories should note that 
a copy will be supplied by the Hillingdon Licensing Service to the applicant. Each person signing 
the petition should print their full name and address. Petitioners should all live within the ‘vicinity’ 
of the premises in question.

The Licensing Act 2003 regulations do not allow for petitions to be presented, without 
notice, to the sub-committee hearing. 

Can the Licensing Service reject a representation? 

Representations can be rejected if they are received after the time limits set, anonymous or in 
the opinion of the Licensing Service they are found to be vexatious, frivolous or repetitive and 
the writer will be notified of this decision. The Hillingdon Licensing Service may also seek to 
mediate between the parties to see if agreement can be reached without the need for a 
licensing hearing.  

Where do I send the representation? 

Please send your representation to the Hillingdon Licensing Service at the address given at the 
top of Section 1 of this protocol. If sent elsewhere, it may not be received in time to be allowed. 
Members of the sub-committees should not be approached with any representations as this 
may prejudice the application. 

Page 3



- iv - 

What if there are a number of similar representations? 

It is possible that there may be a number of similar representations, which if all heard would 
make the hearing unmanageable. At the procedural briefing, held just before the hearing starts, 
the Hillingdon Licensing Service will ask that you agree a spokesman to speak on behalf of 
related representations. 

What happens next? 

A copy of all relevant representations will be provided, in full, to the applicant.  Relevant 
representations will then be considered as part of the business at a Licensing sub-committee 
hearing along with the application. The papers for the sub-committee hearing, including relevant 
representations, will be available to the press and public as part of the Notice of Hearing. 

Where an application is to be decided at a sub-committee hearing, applicants and those who 
have made relevant written representations in connection with the application, will be invited to 
attend and will have speaking rights. 

Page 4



2. On receiving the Notice of Hearing

What is the Notice of Hearing? 
Contact Information: 
To give notice or any queries relating to 
the hearing please contact:  

Clerk to the Committee 
Tel: 01895 277655 
Email: nwilliams@hillingdon.gov.uk
Write to: Clerk to the Committee, Cabinet 
Office, 3E/05, Civic Centre, Uxbridge,  
UB8 1UW 

The Licensing Sub-committee hearing will normally 
be held within the period of 20 working days from 
when the consultation period ends. The Hillingdon 
Licensing Service will give appropriate notice of the 
hearing, which depends upon the type of application 
to be considered. Exact timings are attached in the 
Appendix (parts 2&3).

A Notice of the Hearing will be sent to all parties 
accompanied by: 

 Date, time and location of the actual hearing
      and a procedural briefing to be held beforehand; 
 This procedure note, the report from the Council’s Licensing Officer with relevant 

representations attached; 
 Confirmation that a party may be assisted / represented by a person who does not have to 

be legally qualified; 
 Confirmation that a party to the hearing may address the authority, give further 

information on a point on which the authority requires clarification and, if considered by 
the authority to be required, question another party to the hearing; 

 The consequences of not attending or being represented at a hearing (which normally 
will be that the hearing will proceed in the party’s absence); and 

 A note of any particular points on which the Hillingdon Licensing Service wants 
clarification. 

What do I do when I receive the Notice of Hearing? 

On receipt of the Notice of Hearing, all parties must inform the Clerk to the Committee  – 
normally no later than 2 working days before the hearing* – whether they: 

 Intend to attend or to be represented at the hearing; 
 Consider a hearing to be unnecessary; and 
 Wish to request that another person appear at the hearing (other than their 

representative) as a witness. If such a request is made, it should be accompanied by 
details of the name of that person and a full description of the points about which that 
person may be able to assist the hearing. 

*In the Appendix (part 4), full details are given of the deadline by which you should give your 
notice.  All objectors and applicants are also reminded of their right to have a legal 
representative at the hearing.

If a party does not notify the above to the Clerk to the Committee before the relevant 
deadline they will not be entitled to speaking rights at the hearing. 

-v-

IITT IISS IIMMPPOORRTTAANNTT TTHHAATT YYOOUU RREEPPLLYY TTOO TTHHEE NNOOTTIICCEE

Page 5



                                                                           vi - 

If I want to withdraw my representations - how do I do this? 

Any party may withdraw their representations by contacting the Clerk to the Committee by 
phone, letter or email, providing they give notice no later than 24 hours before the hearing. If, 
during hearing, any party wishes to withdraw their representations they may do so orally by 
informing the Chairman. 

What happens if I cannot attend the sub-committee hearing? 

If you have made a representation and are unable to attend the sub-committee hearing, the 
sub-committee will only hear and consider any evidence and arguments put forward by or on 
behalf of the applicant and other parties present in relation to the written objections received. 
The sub-committee will take into account, in considering the importance to be attached to the 
objection, that the objector was not available to be questioned about their statements. 

Can you accommodate any special needs I may have? 

Yes, if any person, who intends to be present at the hearing, has any special needs, (for 
example in connection with access, hearing, language or vision) this should be brought to the 
attention of the Clerk to the Committee prior to the hearing in order that appropriate provision 
may be made. 

Can the date of the hearing be changed? 

Unfortunately, the Hillingdon Licensing Service cannot be flexible in the dates for hearings as 
the Licensing Act 2003 sets a strict legal deadline by which hearings must be hear

Page 6



3. BBeeffoorree tthhee HHeeaarriinngg

You will have been notified of the date and time of the Licensing Sub-committee hearing. The 
hearings will normally take place at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge in one of the 
Committee Rooms. 

How do I get to the Civic Centre? 

Parking may be available via the entrance to the Civic Centre in the High Street by contacting 
the Clerk to the Committee in advance. Parking is also available in the nearby Chimes 
Shopping Centre Car Park. Bus routes 207, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the Civic Centre. 
Uxbridge underground station, with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk away.

Please enter from the main reception where you will be directed to the relevant Committee 
Room. Please switch off your mobile phone when entering the room and note that Hillingdon 
Council operates a no-smoking policy in its offices. 

Will the hearing be in public? 

There may be other members of the public and press that attend the hearing to observe the 
proceedings, but they will not be allowed to speak. At any hearing, the applicant may attend in 
person or, if the application or objection is made by an organisation or corporate body, a duly 
authorised representative may be present, who is able to speak on their behalf can do so. 

The hearing will take place in public. However, in exceptional circumstances, when the sub-
committee considers that it is in the public interest, it may exclude the public from all or any part 
of a hearing. Hearings will normally take place during the day. 

I have some new evidence - may I present it? 

The sub-committee will not normally allow the production of new written evidence not 
previously submitted as relevant representations by any party. In the case where the sub-
committee does allow new evidence, all other parties must give their consent before it is heard.

If new material is permitted, the hearing may need to be adjourned to allow time to consider it 
and for other parties to respond to it. Accordingly, any application to have new material 
considered should demonstrate exceptional reasons for its admission. It is, therefore important 
for parties to ensure that all evidence is submitted in writing as soon as possible and in 
accordance with the relevant timescales. 

Will I be briefed on procedure before the hearing? 

Yes, in the notice of hearing, you will have been asked to attend a procedural briefing before the 
hearing starts. All parties will be asked to attend this briefing so that the Council’s Licensing 
Officer or Legal Advisor can outline the procedures to be followed at the hearing.
What if there are a number of objectors present? 

At the briefing, in the event of a large number of representations, the Licensing Officer or Legal 
Advisor will ask that a spokesman is agreed amongst those present who have similar 
representations.

- vii - Page 7



- viii - 

Who are the people on the Licensing sub-committee? 

Three elected councillors of the London Borough of Hillingdon sit on a Licensing sub-committee 
and it is only they who can determine the application. Its minimum membership is two. 
Councillors who sit on the sub-committees have been trained in the new Licensing regulations 
and have experience of determining applications of various kinds.  

One of the Councillors will be the Chairman of the hearing and it will be he/she who will call 
interested parties and responsible authorities to speak and ensure time limits are adhered to as 
set out in the procedures. 

Other people who will be present along with the Councillors include: 

 The Council’s Licensing Officer who will introduce the Officer report and outline his/her 
role.

 A Legal Adviser whose role is to assist the Committee with legal advice and to ensure that 
a fair and balanced hearing takes place.

 A Clerk to the Committee whose role is to summarise and record decisions on individual 
mars and to provide help and assistance to members of the public attending such meetin

Page 8



4. DDuurriinngg tthhee HHeeaarriinngg

The procedure at the sub-committee hearing will, in general, be based on those used in a court 
of law. Although the strict rules of evidence will not apply, they will be observed to a great 
extent, because this is the best way of hearing the evidence from all parties. The hearing will 
take the form of a discussion led by the sub-committee councillors. The sub-committee will seek 
clarification on the issues from the parties as it considers appropriate. 

Where shall I sit at the hearing? 

Once you have attended the procedural briefing, you will be directed into the relevant 
Committee Room. The set up of the room for those involved will generally be as shown below: 

- ix - 

    

In general, how will the hearing be conducted? 

Chairman & 
Councillors

Licensing
Officer 

Clerk &
Legal
Advisor

Applicant 
Responsible 
Authorities 

Interested  
Parties

General seating for Public & Press 

The procedure to be followed at the hearing will normally be as shown in the flow chart below, 
although all procedural matters will be subject to the discretion of the Chairman. All persons 
present will be requested to identify themselves and to give the reason for their presence. The 
sub-committee may consider any request from a party for another person to appear at the 
hearing as their representative.

It is important to note that cross-examination will not normally be permitted. Evidence, 
discussion and address must be relevant to the four licensing objectives. Repetition should also 
be avoided. The sub-committee will seek to prevent irrelevant and repetitive matters. 

If, during its deliberations, the sub-committee considers that it is necessary for any person 
present at the hearing to provide further information or clarification on a particular point the 
hearing may be reconvened to deal with that issue. The sub-committee can also ask for 
procedural, technical or legal matter from officers present at any time during the proceedings. 

Page 9



What is the order of proceedings? 

The Chairman of the sub-committee will open the hearing by introducing the Councillors 
explaining the purpose of the proceedings and the general procedure. The Chairman will then 
check that there are no additions or alterations to the list of those appearing at the hearing, 
which will have been prepared in advance by the Clerk to the Committee and will then outline 
the procedure that will be followed for the remainder of the hearing. The procedure is as follows: 

The licensing officer will introduce the 
report and will outline impartially the 
matter before the sub-committee, giving 
any relevant background information. 

Introduction by the 
Council’s Licensing Officer 

The Applicant The applicant presents their case and brings 
forward any supporters or witnesses

The Chairman calls on any of the Responsible 
Authorities present to give factual information 
about their involvement with the premises. 
They make reference to the comments in the 
report and provide any necessary updates.

Responsible  
Authorities (if present) 

Interested Parties’ Case 
(residents etc…) 

Interested parties present their case and 
bring forward any witnesses as required.

OPTIONAL - DISCUSSION LED BY THE SUB-COMMITTEE 
A discussion will only occur if the sub-committee feels that there is a need for the parties involved 

to clarify each other’s cases. The Chairman will lead the discussion 

The responsible authorities and interested 
parties make brief closing remarks on the 
application under question. The applicant 
makes the final closing remarks.

Closing remarks from
each party 

The sub-committee will remain in the room to 
deliberate and make their decision, with only 
the Legal Advisor and Clerk to the Committee 
remaining. All other present will be asked to 
leave the room. 

Sub-committee  
deliberates

Parties may return to the room when asked 
and the Chairman announces the decision.  
The Chairman reminds the applicant that the 
decision will be sent to them in writing. There 
can be no further questions or statements

Chairman announces the 
decision

- x - Page 10



- xi - 

Can a Councillor sit on a sub-committee if the application is in their ward? 

Councillors who sit on a sub-committee are advised to take steps to minimise their involvement 
in any application prior to its consideration by the sub-committee so that decisions are seen to 
be reached at the hearing impartially and with an open mind. Councillors should not appear to 
be acting both as an advocate on behalf of their residents and as an adjudicator on an 
application.  

If a Councillor on the sub-committee has already taken a view on an application in advance of 
the hearing, they should not be present for the hearing of the application and should leave the 
meeting room for that item. They should also not visit any premises under consideration prior to 
the hearing.  In any cases of doubt, the Councillor should not sit on the sub-committee for a 
particular application. In this instance, a substitute Councillor may need to be found from the 
main Licensing committee of the Council or the hearing may continue as long as two of the 
three Councillors are still present. 

The agenda papers will show which ward each Councillor sits for and the reports from the 
Council’s Licensing Officer will detail which ward the application is in. 

Can a ward Councillor make a representation and or speak at a hearing? 

If a ward Councillor, who does not sit on the sub-committee, wishes to make a formal objection 
to an application they may only do so if they make a written relevant representation as would 
apply to an Interested Party and in the same way as any other member of the public using the 
procedures outlined in this protocol. If the ward Councillor believes they have a personal or 
prejudicial interest in the application, they may still submit a relevant representation. 

Ward Councillors, who do not sit on the sub-committee, may also speak at a sub-committee 
hearing in support or against an application, for example on behalf of their constituents without 
notice. They may also speak as an advocate or witness on behalf of the applicant or an 
Interested Party, even if they believe they have a personal or prejudicial interest. However, for 
the purposes of transparency, at the hearing, the ward Councillor should disclose what their 
personal or prejudicial interest is and whether they have been in contact with the applicant, 
agent, Interested Party or responsible authority beforehand or have visited the premises 
concerned. 

Ward Councillors making either a written relevant representation or wish to speak at a hearing 
should not communicate about the application before the hearing with any Councillors who sit 
on the sub-committee. This is so the sub-committee makes their decision with an open mind. 

What power does the Chairman have to control the meeting? 

Under the Licensing act 2003, the Chairman may require any person attending the hearing who 
is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may refuse to permit that person to 
return or may permit the person to return only on such conditions as he or she may specify. 

How will the sub-committee make its final decision? 

Once the sub-committee has heard from officers and the parties to the hearing and has had 
answers to its questions, the sub-committee will usually withdraw to make its decision on the 
application. The sub-committee must disregard any information given or evidence produced by 

Page 11



a party or witness, which is not relevant to the application, representations or notice or the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Members of the sub-committee have a duty to behave impartially, not to predetermine the issue 
and not to discuss matters with press or residents.  In making its decision the sub-committee 
must state in respect of premises licences why refusal or attachment of conditions is necessary 
in order to promote a particular licensing objective, and in respect of all other applications the 
reasons why applications are refused or revoked, taking into account the evidence presented by 
all parties during the hearing. 

5. AAfftteerr tthhee HHeeaarriinngg

When will we get formal notice of the decision? 

The Chairman will normally announce the Sub-committee’s decision in public at the end of the 
hearing and the reasons for the sub-committee’s decision. This decision will then be 
communicated in writing to the parties as soon as possible after the hearing.

The Council’s Legal Advisor will send applicants a decision letter shortly after the meeting 
outlining the decision and any conditions that are attached to the application.  In addition, a 
letter will be sent to all those who made relevant written representations in connection with the 
application.  This will confirm the decision made; any conditions attached to an approval or the 
reasons for refusal.  Details of the respective appeal rights will also be sent with this notice. 

The minutes of the meeting will be made available on the Council’s website at: 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Can we appeal against the decision? 

Following the decision, the applicant or any person who has made a relevant representation in 
respect of a particular application can appeal to the Magistrates Court. 

How can I find out about other applications in my area? 

Applicants for new premises licences and club premises certificates; applications for provisional 
statements and applications for variations of existing premises licences or club premises 
certificates must display a notice on the premises and advertise the application in a local 
newspaper.

All applications once they are lodged will be available for viewing on Hillingdon Council’s 
website at www.hillingdon.gov.uk and in the Civic Centre Offices by appointment with the 
Licensing Service during working hours. 

- xii - Page 12



Appendix

1. Time limits for an interested party or a responsible authority to make
representations

Provision Period of time within which representations must
be made.

1. (a) in the case of a review of a premises
licence following a closure order

At any time up to and including seven days starting
on the day after the day on which the authority
received the notice under section 165(4) in relation to
the closure order and any extension to it

2. (b) In any other case for a premises
licence / club certificate applications.

At any time during a period of 28 consecutive days
starting on the day after the day on which the
application to which it relates was given to the
authority by the applicant.

3. Chief officer of Police giving an
objection notice in regard to a personal
licence application.

Within 14 days beginning with the day he received
notice under subsection (2)

4. Chief officer of Police giving an
objection notice in regard to an e
application to vary licence to specify
individual as premises supervisor

Within 14 days beginning with the day he is notified
of the application under subsection (4)

5. Chief officer of Police giving a counter
notice in regard to a temporary event or
an interim authority notice

No later than 48 hours after the chief officer of police
is given a copy of the notice.

2. Period within which hearings should be held

Provision under which hearing is
held.

Period of time within which hearing must be
commenced.

1. Section 18(3)(a) (determination of
application for premises licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c).

2. Section 31(3)(a) (determination of
application for a provisional statement).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of
section 30.

3. Section 35(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of
section 34(5).

4. Section 39(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence to
specify individual as premises
supervisor).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give notice under section 37(5).

5. Section 44(5)(a) (determination of
application for transfer of premises
licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give notice under section 42(6).

6. Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of
interim authority notice following
police objection).

5 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give notice under section 48(2).

Page 13



Appendix

Provision under which hearing is
held.

Period of time within which hearing must be
commenced.

7. Section 52(2) (determination of
application for review of premises
licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 51(3)(c).

8. Section 72(3)(a) (determination of
application for club premises
certificate).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c).

9. Section 85(3) (determination of
application to vary club premises
certificate).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c) by virtue of
section 84(4).

10. Section 88(2) (determination of
application for review of club premises
certificate).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period during which representations may be
made as prescribed under section 87(3)(c).

11. Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice
following police objection to temporary
event notice).

7 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give a notice under section 104(2).

12. Section 120(7)(a) (determination of
application for grant of personal
licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which the chief officer of police
may give a notice under section 120(5).

13. Section 121(6)(a) (determination of
application for the renewal of personal
licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which the chief officer of police
may give a notice under section 121(3).

14. Section 124(4)(a) (convictions coming
to light after grant or renewal of
personal licence).

20 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which the chief officer of police
may give a notice under section 124(3).

15. Section 167(5)(a) (review of premises
licence following closure order).

10 working days beginning with the day after the day
the relevant licensing authority receives the notice
given under section 165(4).

16. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing licence).

10 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give a notice under paragraph 3(2) or (3) of
Schedule 8.

17. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing club certificate).

10 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which a chief officer of police
may give a notice under paragraph 15(2) or (3) of
Schedule 8.

18. Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by holder
of a justices’ licence for grant of
personal licence).

10 working days beginning with the day after the end
of the period within which the chief officer of police
may give a notice under paragraph 25(2) of Schedule
8.

Page 14



Appendix

3. Hearing Notice Periods

Provision under which hearing is held. Notice of hearing shall be given

1. Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim
authority notice following police
objection),

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

2. Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice
following police objection to temporary
event notice).

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held

3. Section 167(5)(a) (review of premises
licence following closure order)

No later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held

4. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing licence)

No later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held

5. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing club certificate)

No later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held

6. Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by holder
of justices’ licence for grant of personal
licence)

No later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held

4. Action period following receipt of notice of hearing

Provision under which hearing is held. Notice by a party shall be given

Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim
authority notice following police objection),

No later than one working day before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following
police objection to temporary event notice)).

No later than one working day before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence
following closure order)

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for conversion
of existing licence)

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for conversion
of existing club certificate)

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Page 15



Appendix

Provision under which hearing is held. Notice by a party shall be given

Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by holder of
justices’ licence for grant of personal licence)

No later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

In any other case No later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

A party who wishes to withdraw any
representations they have made may do so

(a) by giving notice to the authority no later than 24
hours before the day or the first day on which the
hearing is to be held; or
(b) orally at the hearing

Page 16



 

Application for review of premises licence  
 
Committee  Licensing Sub Committee 
   
Officer Contact  Sharon Garner, Licensing Officer     Tel: 01895 277230 
   
Papers with report  • Copy of Review application and relevant documents from Sgt 

Ian Meens 
• Copy of letter and evidence from Martin King in support of the 

review 
• Copy of email received from Cllr Dominic Gilham in support of 

the review 
• Copy of the premises licence 
• List of responsible authorities 
• Map of the area 

   
Ward(s) affected   West Drayton 
 
SUMMARY 
To consider an application for a Review of a premises licence under Part 3 Section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 made by Sgt Ian Meens on behalf of the Metropolitan Police Service in 
respect of  West Drayton Food & Wine, 19 Station Road, West Drayton UB7 7BT. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Licensing Sub Committee determine the application. 
 
INFORMATION 
1.1 An application for a Review of the premises licence for West Drayton Food & Wine 

made by Sgt Ian Meens on behalf of the Metropolitan Police Service, was received 
on 24th June 2011 on the grounds of:- 
 

Prevention of crime and disorder – the sale and display for sale 
counterfeit and non-duty paid goods  
 
The breach of licensing conditions 
 
Public Safety – the sale of counterfeit goods with the possibility of risk 
to public health 
 
 

1.2 The premises is a single unit shop selling groceries and alcohol.  The premises 
licence was issued to Mr Pal Singh Kapoor on 13th May 2009. 
 

1.3 Sgt Meens sent copies of the application to all the Responsible Authorities as 
required by the Licensing Act 2003.  A copy of the application is annexed to this 
report as Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 In accordance with the legislation, a poster giving details of the application was 
displayed at the premises for 28 days and checks were made by the council’s 
Licensing Officers to ensure that the poster was still correctly displayed.  
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



1.5 As required by the legislation, a poster was also displayed on the Civic Centre 
notice board for 28 days and the details were listed on the council’s website. 
 

1.6 The legislation provides for other Responsible Authorities and/or interested parties 
such as residents to support the Review application.   The period for Responsible 
Authorities and local residents to support the application expired on 22nd July 2011. 
One letter of support was received from the Council’s Trading Standards Officer and 
one email of support was received from Councillor Dominic Gilham. 
 
These letters of support are annexed to this report as Appendix 2 and Appendix 3. 
 

 
2.0 
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
The licensing authority must review the premises licence where it is alleged in an 
application for review by a Responsible Authority or an Interested Party that any of 
the licensing objectives are being undermined. 
 

2.1 "Relevant representations" are those which :– 
 

• Are relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives; 
• Are made by a responsible authority or an interested party within the 

prescribed period; 
• Are made by the holder of the premises licence in response to an application 

for a review of the said premises 
• Have not been withdrawn; and 
• If made by an interested party, that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant 

licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious. 
 
The four licensing objectives are – 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety; 
• The prevention of nuisance; and 
• The protection of children from harm 

 
Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance 
 

2.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must also consider the London Borough of  
Hillingdon’s licensing policy when what action, if any, to institute.  The terms  
of the Statement of Licensing Policy are highly persuasive, but not binding,  
on the Licensing Sub-Committee.  The Licensing Sub-Committee may depart  
from the guidance contained in the Statement of Licensing Policy if it considers  
there are clear and convincing reasons to do so. 
 
Where there is a conflict between the Licensing Act 2003 and the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Act must prevail. 
 

2.3 Members are required to have regard to the DCMS Guidance in carrying out the 
functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every possible 
situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, 
members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be 
given if this is the case. 
 
+ 

Page 18



2.4 
 
 
 
 

The sub-committee may decide to: – 
• Take no action 
• Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any 

condition; 
• Issue a formal warning, recommending an improvement within a 

specified time frame; 
• Exclude a licensable activities from the scope of the licence; 
• Remove the designated premises supervisor; 
• Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or 
• Revoke the licence. 

 
 
For this purpose the conditions of a premises licence are modified if any of them are 
altered or omitted or any new condition is added.  Modifications of conditions and 
exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a 
temporary period of up to three months. 
 

2.5 The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review 
does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  
 
In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the Sub-Committee must 
direct it’s mind to the causes or concerns which the representations identify.  The 
remedial action should generally be directed at these causes and should always be 
no more than a necessary and proportionate response. 
 
It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result 
from a licensing authority’s decision is necessary and proportionate to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for 
review. 
 

2.6 Conditions 
Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a current statutory requirement..  
 
Members are also referred to the Home Office guidance on conditions, specifically 
section 10.7 and Annexe D.  
 
The Statutory Guidance states that only necessary, proportionate and enforceable 
conditions, which promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be 
attached to the licence. 
 
The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are 
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
Review application (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed 
areas (paragraph 9.24).  Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions 
that are supplied by the Secretary of State should not be applied universally 
irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used as examples that can be 
tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations. 
 

2.6 Notification of Determination 
 
Where the authority determines an application for review it must notify the 
determination and reasons for making it to: – 
 
 

Page 19



• The holder of the licence; 
• Any person who made relevant representations; 
• The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which 

the premises are situated 
 

2.8 The Role of the Licensing Sub-Committee  
 
Sub-Committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the Council 
has multiple roles.  Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the Council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.  
 
Members should note that the Licensing Sub-Committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority.  The Sub-Committee sits in 
quasi-judicial capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased 
hearing of the application.  In this case, Members should disregard the Council’s 
broader policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts.  Members 
must direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the Licensing 
Law, Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
As a quasi-judicial body the Licensing Sub-Committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits.  The Sub-Committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors.  The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts.  The Licensing Sub-Committee must give fair consideration to the 
contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to them. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises 
if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open.  The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant.  However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.  Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.  
 
The Sub-Committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from interested parties and responsible authorities.  
Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a 
case to case basis.  
 
Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the Sub Committee needs to consider the 
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 
application when making their decision.  The Sub-Committee has a duty under 
section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to 
prevent crime and disorder in the Borough.  
 
Interested Parties, Responsible Authorities and the applicant have the right to 
appeal the decision of the Sub-Committee to the Magistrates’ Court within a period 
of 21 days beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the 
licensing authority of the decision to be appealed against.  
 
 

Page 20



3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Members should be aware that the Planning, Environment and Community Services 
does not have a budget provision for costs, should the applicant be successful in 
appealing to the Court(s) against a decision of the Council. In the event that a Court 
was to uphold an appeal, officers would need to identify how the costs would be 
funded before action could be taken in order to comply with Council financial policy. 
 

 
RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 
• Copy of Review application and relevant documents from Sgt Ian Meens 
• Copy of letter and evidence from Martin King in support of the review 
• Copy of email received from Cllr Dominic Gilham in support of the review 
• Copy of the premises licence 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
The Licensing Act 2003 
Guidance Under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application for review of premises licence  
 
Committee  Licensing Sub Committee 
   
Officer Contact  Sharon Garner, Licensing Officer     Tel: 01895 277230 
   
Papers with report  • Copy of Review application and relevant documents from Sgt 

Ian Meens 
• Copy of letter and evidence from Martin King in support of the 

review 
• Copy of email received from Cllr Dominic Gilham in support of 

the review 
• Copy of the premises licence 
• List of responsible authorities 
• Map of the area 

   
Ward(s) affected   West Drayton 
 
SUMMARY 
To consider an application for a Review of a premises licence under Part 3 Section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 made by Sgt Ian Meens on behalf of the Metropolitan Police Service in 
respect of  Best Food & Wine, 61 Station Road, West Drayton UB7 7LR. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Licensing Sub Committee determine the application. 
 
INFORMATION 
1.1 An application for a Review of the premises licence for Best Food & Wine made by 

Sgt Ian Meens on behalf of the Metropolitan Police Service, was received on 24th 
June 2011 on the grounds of:- 
 

Prevention of crime and disorder – the sale and display for sale 
counterfeit and non-duty paid goods  
 
The breach of licensing conditions 
 
Public Safety – the sale of counterfeit goods with the possibility of risk 
to public health 
 
 

1.2 The premises is a double unit shop selling groceries and alcohol.  The premises 
licence was issued to Mr Pal Singh Kapoor on 20th May 2009. 
 

1.3 Sgt Meens sent copies of the application to all the Responsible Authorities as 
required by the Licensing Act 2003.  A copy of the application is annexed to this 
report as Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 In accordance with the legislation, a poster giving details of the application was 
displayed at the premises for 28 days and checks were made by the council’s 
Licensing Officers to ensure that the poster was still correctly displayed.  
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 47



1.5 As required by the legislation, a poster was also displayed on the Civic Centre 
notice board for 28 days and the details were listed on the council’s website. 
 

1.6 The legislation provides for other Responsible Authorities and/or interested parties 
such as residents to support the Review application.   The period for Responsible 
Authorities and local residents to support the application expired on 22nd July 2011. 
One letter of support was received from the Council’s Trading Standards Officer and 
one email of support was received from Councillor Dominic Gilham. 
 
These letters of support are annexed to this report as Appendix 2 and Appendix 3. 
 

 
2.0 
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
The licensing authority must review the premises licence where it is alleged in an 
application for review by a Responsible Authority or an Interested Party that any of 
the licensing objectives are being undermined. 
 

2.1 "Relevant representations" are those which :– 
 

• Are relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives; 
• Are made by a responsible authority or an interested party within the 

prescribed period; 
• Are made by the holder of the premises licence in response to an application 

for a review of the said premises 
• Have not been withdrawn; and 
• If made by an interested party, that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant 

licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious. 
 
The four licensing objectives are – 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety; 
• The prevention of nuisance; and 
• The protection of children from harm 

 
Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance 
 

2.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must also consider the London Borough of  
Hillingdon’s licensing policy when what action, if any, to institute.  The terms  
of the Statement of Licensing Policy are highly persuasive, but not binding,  
on the Licensing Sub-Committee.  The Licensing Sub-Committee may depart  
from the guidance contained in the Statement of Licensing Policy if it considers  
there are clear and convincing reasons to do so. 
 
Where there is a conflict between the Licensing Act 2003 and the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Act must prevail. 
 

2.3 Members are required to have regard to the DCMS Guidance in carrying out the 
functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every possible 
situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, 
members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be 
given if this is the case. 
 
+ 

Page 48



2.4 
 
 
 
 

The sub-committee may decide to: – 
• Take no action 
• Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any 

condition; 
• Issue a formal warning, recommending an improvement within a 

specified time frame; 
• Exclude a licensable activities from the scope of the licence; 
• Remove the designated premises supervisor; 
• Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or 
• Revoke the licence. 

 
 
For this purpose the conditions of a premises licence are modified if any of them are 
altered or omitted or any new condition is added.  Modifications of conditions and 
exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a 
temporary period of up to three months. 
 

2.5 The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review 
does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  
 
In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the Sub-Committee must 
direct it’s mind to the causes or concerns which the representations identify.  The 
remedial action should generally be directed at these causes and should always be 
no more than a necessary and proportionate response. 
 
It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result 
from a licensing authority’s decision is necessary and proportionate to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for 
review. 
 

2.6 Conditions 
Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a current statutory requirement..  
 
Members are also referred to the Home Office guidance on conditions, specifically 
section 10.7 and Annexe D.  
 
The Statutory Guidance states that only necessary, proportionate and enforceable 
conditions, which promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be 
attached to the licence. 
 
The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are 
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
Review application (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed 
areas (paragraph 9.24).  Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions 
that are supplied by the Secretary of State should not be applied universally 
irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used as examples that can be 
tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations. 
 

2.6 Notification of Determination 
 
Where the authority determines an application for review it must notify the 
determination and reasons for making it to: – 
 
 

Page 49



• The holder of the licence; 
• Any person who made relevant representations; 
• The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which 

the premises are situated 
 

2.8 The Role of the Licensing Sub-Committee  
 
Sub-Committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the Council 
has multiple roles.  Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the Council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.  
 
Members should note that the Licensing Sub-Committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority.  The Sub-Committee sits in 
quasi-judicial capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased 
hearing of the application.  In this case, Members should disregard the Council’s 
broader policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts.  Members 
must direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the Licensing 
Law, Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
As a quasi-judicial body the Licensing Sub-Committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits.  The Sub-Committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors.  The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts.  The Licensing Sub-Committee must give fair consideration to the 
contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to them. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises 
if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open.  The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant.  However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.  Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.  
 
The Sub-Committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from interested parties and responsible authorities.  
Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a 
case to case basis.  
 
Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the Sub Committee needs to consider the 
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 
application when making their decision.  The Sub-Committee has a duty under 
section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to 
prevent crime and disorder in the Borough.  
 
Interested Parties, Responsible Authorities and the applicant have the right to 
appeal the decision of the Sub-Committee to the Magistrates’ Court within a period 
of 21 days beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the 
licensing authority of the decision to be appealed against.  
 
 

Page 50



3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Members should be aware that the Planning, Environment and Community Services 
does not have a budget provision for costs, should the applicant be successful in 
appealing to the Court(s) against a decision of the Council. In the event that a Court 
was to uphold an appeal, officers would need to identify how the costs would be 
funded before action could be taken in order to comply with Council financial policy. 
 

 
RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 
• Copy of Review application and relevant documents from Sgt Ian Meens 
• Copy of letter and evidence from Martin King in support of the review 
• Copy of email received from Cllr Dominic Gilham in support of the review 
• Copy of the premises licence 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
The Licensing Act 2003 
Guidance Under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Hearing Protocol for Premises Licensing Applications
	5 Application for review of premises licence - West Drayton Food & Wine, 19 Station Road, West Drayton UB7 7BT
	West Drayton

	6 Application for review of premises licence - Best Food & Wine, 61 Station Road, West Drayton UB7 7LR
	Best
	best2
	best3


